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Union Church Presbyterian Church is a five-by-three-bay one-story clapboard building with a
front-gable orientation. The building faces south and rests on a foundation of brick piers.
A five-sided vestibule with central entrance was added to the front elevation ca. 1903.
Main access is through a pair of four-panel double-leaf doors beneath a two-pane transom.
Windows contain nine-over-nine sash. Shutters, concrete steps, iron railing, and asphalt
roof are all replacements. Exterior enrichment includes a wide frieze embellished below by
a row of V-shaped shingles.

Access from the vestibule interior, which is clad with beaded boarding, to the sanctuary is
through two four-panel doors. The doors are double-leafed, with each leaf hinged to fold in
half vertically. Structural evidence reveals that the entrances were originally set closer
together and moved possibly to accommodate the pulpit platform, which is located against this
wall and appears from the style of its lectern and decorative pedestals to be a turn-of-the-
century addition. Walls and ceilings are flush boarded. Electric light fixtures are
pendants with spherical globes, a type commonly in use after 1900.

A short distance northwest of the church stands a frame Sunday-school building built in 1945.
The structure has a front-gable orientation and central entrance. Located across the road
and south of the church is the cemetery.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Union Church Presbyterian Church, the present main structure of which was built in 1852, is
an important local landmark, with a history that reflects the Scottish settlement of the
area and an organization that predates Mississippi statehood. The church cemetery, with
headstones representative of various styles in funerary art, contains graves dating from
the 1830s, and includes the grave of the Reverend Dr. C. W. Grafton, nationally prominent
Presbyterian churchman and former minister of the church.

One of the oldest of its denomination in Mississippi, Union Church Presbyterian Church was
organized in March, 1817, with the Reverend Joseph Bullen serving as its first minister.

The congregation was composed primarily of Scottish Presbyterians from the Carolinas but
included as well three or four families of Methodist settlers "related" to the Presbyterian:
through the marriage of their children. Too few in number to support their own church,

the Methodists joined with the Presbyterians for worship, thereby originating the name

Union Church. The Scottish settlement prospered so that by 1852 the congregation had out-
grown two buildings, and the present church building was constructed. At the outbreak of
the Civil War the people of the Union Church settlement contributed to the war effort by
forming the Charley Clark Rifle Company, the first company to leave Jefferson County for
service against the North. In 1873 the Reverend Dr. C. W. Grafton began his ministry, which
lasted until his death in 1934. Dr. Grafton figured prominently in the government of the
Presbyterian Church, U.S., on both state and national levels, serving as moderator of the
Synod of Mississippi in 1896 and as moderator of the General Assembly, highest deliberative
and legislative body of the church, in 1916. Dr. Grafton is buried in the church cemetery.
In use since the 1830s, the cemetery contains several other monuments of interest, most
notably the headstone of a lamb executed in cast iron and finished to imitate stone, and

the more elaborate sculptural monuments of the 1880s period.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION , S
The nominat‘ed property includes a ten-acre church lot north of state highway 28 and a twelve-
acre cemetery lot south of highway 28 as indicated on the accompanying U.S. Department of

Interior Geological Survey Map entitled Union Church, Miss., 1963. and contains twenty-two
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of the fifty-and-a-half acres owned by Union Church Presbyterian Church.



Verbal Boundary Description for Union Church
Jefferson County, Mississippt

Beginning at a point on the eastern boundary of the church lot at
Route 28, the boundary moves north approximately 800" then west 500
then south for 1,500' crossing Route 28 until it meets the Meadville
Road. The boundary then moves northeast following the Meadville Road
for approximately 400' until it meets Route 28. The 1ine then moves west
for approximately 400' along Route 28 where it returns to the starting

point.
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